This document has been
Rescinded and is located
in our Archive files.

For Active files, visit
http://www.osmre.gov/directiv.htm



http://www.osmre.gov/directiv.htm

U §: DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR; Sebiect Number

OFFICE OF SURFACE MINING k—s

-RECLAMATION AND ENFORCEMENT T"“"“;;gl Number:

DIRECTIVES SYSTEM [°0cT1 9 1990

Subject; /;ﬁ Ten-Day Notices p

Approval; /e« £iy [ sf—-] Title: Director
7 ~ ' 7

1. PURPOSE. This Directive establishes procedures for the
issuance, evaluation, and informal review of ten-day notices in
States with approved regulatory programs.

2. SUMMARY OF CHANGES., fThis Directive revises and supersedes
Directive INE-35, Transmittal Numker 534, dated March 29, 1989.
The significant revisions are as follows:

a8, Sections 3.d. and 3,e. have been added to inciudas
additional definitions for the terms “appropriate actiecn® and
"good cause” including the need to address improvidently issued
permits.

b. BSection 4.b. has been ravised to specify that ten-day
notices {(Standard Form IE~160) shall not be issued in response to
citizen complaints and permit defects., Separate procedures for
using a "ten~day notice letter," applicable to these situations
have been added as sections 4.c¢.(4) and 4.c.(5).

<¢. Section 4.¢.(3)(b) has been revised to require rField
Offices to transmit requests for informal review by telefax to
the Branch of Inspection and Enforcement at Headquarters and to
include in the required Field Office briefing package copies of
relevant portions of the approved permit and State laws and
regulations.

d. BSection 4.¢.(6) has been added to allow needed visits to
a minesite before, during and after the ten-day notice period and
to clarify that States will be notified that a Federal minesite
visit related to a ten-day notice will be coenducted and that the
Stake may participate.

3. DEFINITIONS.

a. Iepn-day Notige. Standard form IE-160 (3/81) used in
accordance with 30 CFR £42.11 and 843.12(a) (2} to notify a state
regulatory authority that an authorized representative of the
Secretary has reason to believe that a person is in violation of
any requirement of the Act, the State program, or any permit
condition imposed under that program, where the information was
not furnished by a citizen and the violation is not the result of
a permit defect.




L. Ten-day Letter. A letter used in aceordance with 30 CFR
842.11 and 843.12(a)(2) to notify a State regulatory authority
that an authorized representative of the Secretary has reason to
believe that a person is in violation of any requirement of the
Act, the State program, or any permit condlition impesed under
that program where the information was furnished by a citizen or
the violation is the result of a permit defect.

€. Reason to believe. An authorized representative of the
Secretary shall have reascn to believe that a condition,
practice, or violation exists if available information would, if
true, constitute an imminent danger or harm or a violaticn of the
State program. See 30 CFR 842.11(b) (2).

. i us a meang
with respect to a State response to a ten~day notice or letter, -
that a State has acted: (1) irraticnally in that tha State’s
interpretation of its program is inconsistent with the terms of
the approved program or any prior State interpretation recognized
by the Secretary, or (2) without adhering to correct procedures,
or (3) inconsistent with applicable law, or (4) without proper
evaluation of relevant criteria.

e. Appropriate action.

(1) As provided under 30 CFR 842.11(b) (1) (ii) (B) (3),
"appropriate action” means enforcement or other action authorized
under the State program to cause a violation to be corrected,

(2) "Other acticns" are those actions which are
specifically approved in the State program in lieu of enforcement
action and will cause the viclation te be corrected. For
example, unless bond forfeiture has been approved in an approved
pregram as an action that may be used in lieu of an enforcement
action, it would not be considered an appropriate action. See 53
FR 26733.

(3) For the purposes of evaluating State responses to
ten-day notices involving improvidently issued pernits,
appropriate action means the State has taken, or is diligently in
the process of taking action under the State program egquivalents
to 30 CFR 772.20 and 773.21, or if the State FProgram does not
contain such egquivalents, action as effective as that reguired
under 30 CFR 773.20 and 773.21. See 30 CFR 843.21(d); 54 FR
18456,

f. Goed causea.

(1) As provided under 30 CFR 842.11(b){1) (ii) (B) (4),
good cause includes: (i) under the State program, the possible
violation does not exist; (ii) the regulatory authority requires
& reasonable and specified additional time to determine whether a
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violatlion of the State program exists; (iii) the regulatory
authority lacks jurisdictien under the State program over the
possible vieclation or operation; (iv) the regulatory authority is
precluded by an administrative or judicial order from an
administrative body or court of compatent jurisdiction from
acting on the possible violation, where that order is based on
the viclation not existing or where temporary relief standards of
the State counterparts to section 525(¢) or 526{c) of the Act
have been met; or (v) with regard to abandoned sites as defined
in 30 CFR 840.11(g}, the regulatory authority is diligently
pursuing or has exhausted all appropriate enforcemant provisions
of tha Btate program.

(2) PFor the purpose of evaluating State responses to
ten-day notices and letters, examples of "good cause" would
include:

. {i} the possible vioclation dces not exist if the
regqulatory authority provides facts which demonstrate that the
conditions addressed in the ten-day notice are not a vieolation
under the approved State preogram. In those instances in which
the Field office Director concludes that the State program is
inconsistent with the Act or Federal regqulations to the extent
that the violation is not explicitly addressed and is allowed
under the approved program, the Field 0ffice Director shall,
within ten days, prepare a draft under 30 CFR 730.11(a) or 30 CFR
732.17 to reguire the approved program to be corrected.

(ii) the regulatory authority regquires a
reasonable and specified additional time to determine whether a
violation of the State program exists is appropriate where, for
example, the regulatory authority needs additional time or
tachnical or laboratory analysis. The Field Office Director
should specify the time allowed and menitor the time to assure
that the State’s response is received within the additional time
pericd;

(iii) the regulatory authority lacks the
jurisdiction under the State program ovear the possible violation
or operaticn in light of the interpretation of a provision
contained in an approved State program. If the Field Office
Director concludes that the State program is inconsistent with
the Act and Federal regulations to the extent that the State does
not have jurisdiction over the violation or operation, the Field
Office Director shall, within ten days, prepare a draft under 30
CFR 730,11(a) or 30 CFR 732.17 to require the approved program to
ba corrected.

(iv} the regulatory authority asserts that action
is precluded by an administrative or judicial crder. The Field
Office Director shall review whether the order was (a) based on a
finding that the violation does not exist, {b) granted by a court
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or administrative body of competent jurisdiction {e.g., with the
judicial or administrative right to decide the matter), and (c)
consistent with the temporary stay standards eatablished in the
State’s counterpart to sections 525(¢) or 5Z6(c) of the Act; angd

(3} TFor the purpose of evaluating State responses to
ten-day notices involving improvidently issued permits, good
cause means any reascnable factual or legal impediment to taking
action under State program equivalents of 30 CFR 773,20 and
773.21, excluding the lack of State program equivalents to those
sections. In applying the improvidently issued permit rula,
consideratien may be given o the other good cause criteria under
definition 3.e, (1) above, with the exception just noted, but
evaluations will ba governed by the "any reasonable factual legal
impediment"” standard, not the express terms of the definition in
Jd.a,{1).

+ 9. Permit Defect. Any procedural or substantive deficiency
in a permit-ralated action taken by the regulateory authority
(including issuance of a permit, permit revision, permit renewal,
or transfer, assigmnmant, or zale of permit rights). Examples
include: (a) a failure to follow tha procedural requirements of
the approved program; (b) a lack of a written finding required
before for an action or situation can be approved in the permit;
(¢} lack of technical information, tests, plans, or other
information which is required by the approved program to support
a specific finding that was made or acticon that was taken as part
©f the permit approval process; (d) approval of designs or
mining and reclamation practices which are inconsistent with the
approved program; and (e) an error inh the analysis of technical
or other information or plans.

h. P mmatic Issue. The systemic implementation of an
aspect of an approved program in a manner which OSM believes is
inconsistent with the Secretary’s interpretation of the approved
program, or an omission in the State program of a requirement of
The Act or Federal requlations resulting in the State’s inability
to take enforcement against certain typves of violations or to
perform certain regulatory functions. In both cases, either a
732 letter has been issued or the State hag made a written
commitment and submitted a schedule to amend its program and is
adhering to such commitment.,

4. POLICY/PRGCEDURES.

a. Background. On August 15, 1988, a final rule becams
effective (53 FR 26728, July 14, 1988), which amended the Federal
inspection and enforcement regulations to establish a uniform
standard by which 05M will evaluate State responses to ten-day
notices. According to thls standard, a State response to a ten-
day notice will be accepted as constituting appropriate action or
good cause unless the State has acted in a manher which is
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arbitrary, capricious, or an abuse of discretion under the State
program. The rule also contains examples of certain measures
taken by the State which would comprise "appropriate action"™ and
"good cause" and establishes a process by which States may
request informal review of OSM‘s determination that the State
failed to take appropriate action in response to a ten-day notice
or show good cause for such failure. See 30 CFR
842.11(b) (1} (ii) (B} {1) and 843.12(a)(2).

.b. PBelicy. Except as provided below, an authorized
representative shall issue a ten-day notice or ten-day letter to
the regulatory authority whenever there is reason to believe that
a violation of the Act, the Stata program or a permit condition
exists. A regulatory authority’s response to a ten-day notice or
letter shall constitute "appropriate action™ to cause a viclation
to be corrected or “good cause" for failure to do so unless a
determination is made in writing that the regulatory authority’s
response is arbitrary, capricious, or an abuse of discretion
under the State program.

A ten-day notice (Standard Form IE=-160) shall not be issued under
the following circumstances:

(1) Imminent Danger/Harm. When a person provides

adequate proof that an imminent danger or harm exists and the
ragulatory autheority has failed to take appropriate action. In
this case, a Federal inspection is required immediataly.

(2} Deferralg. When a State inspector agrees to
promptly take appropriate action to cause a violation to ba
corrected as a result of a joint State/0SM inspection and such
action is taken within ten-days.

(3) Citizen Complaints., When a citizen complaint,

which does not gualify under paragraph (1) above is received in
writing (or orally followed in writing). Such complaints shall
be addressed in accordance with the ten-day letter procedures
under section 4.c.(4) of this directive.

{4} Permit defects. Where defects contained in
permits issued by the regulatory authority are identified, such
preblems shall be addressed in accordance with the ten-day letter
procedures under section 4.c.(5) of this directive. However, in
cages involving multiple violations of which one or more of the
violations are not permit defects, no need exists for issuing a
separate ten-day letter; rather, the permit defect should be
included in the ten-day notice being issued for the remaining
viclations.

{5) Programmatjic Issue. When a 732 letter has been

issued or the written schedule committed to by the State
regulatory authority is being met, Field Offices shall notify the
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regulatery authority in writing of any additional violations
ocbserved during Federal inspections which are subject of the
program amendment and which may regquire appropriate action to be
taken after the State has amended its program.

c. Procedures.
(1) suan en=da ot Ten=-da

. (a} Where the information used as the basis for a
ten-day notice or ten~day letter originates from administrative
review of State inspection and enforcement documents, the
authorized representative shall take reascnable steps to ensure
such information is current, which may first require contacting
the regulatory authority to verify case facts. Where the
information used as a basis for a ten-day notice or ten-day
letter originates from a joint inspection, the 0OSM reclamation
specialist shall, prior to leaving the mine site, identify those
areas in which he/she believes a violation may exist. If,
subsequent t¢ leaving the minesite after a joint inspection, the
reclamation specialist detarmines an issue exists which was not
discussed with the State inspector and which warrants a ten-day
notice or ten-day letter, the State inspector shall be informed
of the additional issue and if the State inspector agrees to take
appropriate action within ten days, the reclamation specialist
shall defer to the State inspector’s action,

fb) Ten-day notices or ten=-day letters shall ke
either hand delivered or sant by certified mail to the
appropriate official at the local State office with jurisdiction
-over the operation. Concurrently, a copy of each ten-day notice
or ten-day letter shall be provided toc the permittee in
accordance with Directive INE-3., 0SM evidence collected to
support a ten-day netice shall be made available to the State for
its discretionary use. :

(c} The ten-day notice or letter periocd shall
commence on the day following receipt by the State and expire ten
calendar days thereafter in accordance with the time computation
provisions under 30 CFR 700.15.

' {d) Field Office Directors shall establish
systems to effectively monitor the expiration of the ten—-day
periods for State responses to ten-day notices and ten-day
letters. For each ten-day notice or ten-day letter, a separate
case file shall be established which contains chronologically all
documents and correspondance associated with the case.

{e) A subseguent determination that informing the
State about an alleged vioclation would have been more appropriate
using a ten-day notice letter rather than a ten-day notice (or



vice versa) does not affact the respensibilities of the State, or
the operater, or 0SM to address the underlying allegation.

{2) St Ten- No a en- et Eespon .

(a} Ten-day notices and ten-day latters require a
written response from the regulatory authority within the ten-day
pericd. Interim respeonses may be accepted as good cause in
accordance with 30 CFR 842.11{b) (1) (ii) (B} (4} (ii) where the
regulatory authority requires a reascnable and specified
additional time to determine whether a viclation of the State
program exists (e.g., to perform technical or laboratory
analysis).

(B} If no response is received near the end of
the ten day periocd, the Fleld Office should attempt to contact
the regulatory authority to determine the status of the regponse.
Failure by the regulatory authority to respond to a ten-day
notice or ten-day letter shall not prevent the authorized
representative from making a determination whether the standards
Ior appropriate action or good cause have been met and will
constitute a waiver of the requlatory authority’s right to
request an informal review under 3¢ CFR 842.11(k) (1} (iil).

(¢) In those instances in which an operator has
violated a performance standard or other State program
requirement not explicitly addressed or covered in a permit
{e.g., a haul road is not included in thea permit area} or the
pernit does not apply the performance standard to the entire
permit area (e.g., run-off from all areas are not directed to a
sedimentation structure) or the operator has violated the terms
of a permit or approved mining and reciamation pian, the
appropriate response would be an enforcement action. The
possibility that the regulatory authority may, at some point in
the future, allow a revision of the permit to allow the practice
does not negate the reguirement for an enforcement action. Such
enforcement action should require the permittee to cease the
unauthorized practice and may provide a reasonable time for the
permittee to either perform any remedial actions necessary to
conform with the approved permit or to diligently submit and
obtain approval of a permit revision which, if approved, would
authorize the practice.

(d) Unless laboratory.analysis of samples taken
during a Jjoint inspection subsequently confirms the existence of
a vieclation, violations alleged in a ten-day notice or ten-day
letter which have been corrected or are no longer present when
the regulatory authority conducts its ten~day notice or ten-day
letter inspection will constitute good cause for not taking
appropriate action. Field Offices may visit minesites to confirm
the absence of such viclations as specified in section 4.c.6 of
this directive.



{e} The definitlicons of appropriate action and
good cause should provide tlear guidance for evaluating State
ten-day netice responses in most cases. However, since the
examples contained in the definitions are not necessarily
exnaustive, they must ba evaluated in the context of {and
governed by} the arbitrary, capricious, or abuse of discretion
standard. Aany ten-day notice for which it appears the regulatory
authority has responded in a manner which is arbitrary,
capricicus, or an abuse of discretion under the State program
shall be immediately reviewed by the Field office Director who
will be responsible for ceoncurring in the final written
determination. When applying the arbitrary, capriciou= or abuse
of discretion standard in deciding whether a State’s response is
appropriate the Field 0ffice Director shall provide an
explanation of what aspects of a State’s response are arbitrary,
capricious, or an abuse of discretion and shall ‘state the basis
on which this conclusion is drawn.

(£) Field Offices should complete evaluations of
State responses to ten-day notlice and ten-day letters within ten
days unless factors exist reqguiring expertise unavailable in the
Field Office (i.e2., Solicitor, technical services}. Upon
cenclusion of each State ten-day notice or ten-day letter
response evaluation, the authorized representative, or the Field
Office Director in the case of an inappropriate response, shall
immediately transmit a written determination t¢ the regulatory
authority by certified mail. Unless a cessation order for an
imminent danger/harm is required pursuant to 30 CFR 843.11 or
unless the regulatory authority has failed to respond to the ten-
day notice or ten-day letter, no Federal inspection shall ke
conducted (eXcept that a minesite visit may be conducted under
section 4.c.(6) (a) of this directive)}, nor any enforcement action
issued with respect to any ten-day notice or ten-day letter until
the time to request informal review of the written determination
by the Depulty Director, Operations and Technical Services has
expired or if informal review has been requested, until the
Deputy Director has rendered a dacision.

(g) The Field Office Dirsctor shall monitor the
implementation of State actions which formed the basis for
determining that the State’s response was appropriate. 1In those
instances in which the State fails to implement the required
action as indicated in the response within 2 specified and
reasonable time, the action shall be determined to be
inappropriate. At that time the Field Office Director shall
inform the State that failure to implement actions within a
reasonable time has caused the response to be considered
inapprepriate and that a Federal inspection will be ordered
uniess the State appeals under 30 CFR 242.11({b) (1) ({iii) (A).



{3) o aw . e i LOnS .

{a} Where the regulatory authority disagreas with
the Fleld Office’s written determination and requests an informal
review by the Deputy Director, Operations ang Technical Services
under 3¢ CFR 842.11(b) (1) (iii}, such reguest and any State
explanation of its appeal must be received at the appropriate
Fiald Office or the Office of the Deputy Director in Washington,
D.C, within five days after receipt of the written determination.
The five day period shall commence on the day fellowing receipt
of the authorized representativers written determination and
expira five calendar days, thereafter in accordance with the time
computation provisions under 30 CFR 700.15.

. {I} iel ffice c shall be responsible
for:

1. Recording on the request for review, the
date of receipt at the Field Office;

2. Telefaxing a copy of any request to the
Branch of Inspection and Enforcement at Headgquarters within one
working day after receipt and at the same time mailing or
telefaxing a copy to the Assistant Director for Field Operations;
and

3. Within three working days after the
receipt of any request or notification from Headquarters that a
request for informal review has been submitted to the office of
the” Deputy Director, Preparing and forwarding wvia cvernight mail
or carrier to the Branch of inspection and Enforcement at
Headquarters:

{a) the original redquest for informal review
together with any State explanation of its appeal when the
request is filed with the Field Office;

(b) a copy of the complete ten-day notice or
ten-day letter record in chrenological order, including relevant
maps and photographs;

i (¢) a copy of the State rasponse to the ten=-
day notice or ten-day letter and synopsis of the case including a
discussion of the Field Office’s rationale supporting its written
determination;

(d) copies of the relevant portions of
permits and State laws and requlations on which the ten-day
notice was based; and .

(e) the authorized representative’s written
determination concerning the State’s responsa.
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(c) The Assistant Director for Fileld Operations
shall be respcnsible for providing any comments o the Deputy
Director within three days after receiving notification that a
request for informal review has been submitted. An information
copy should also be forwarded to the Branch of Inspection and
Enforcement at Headquarters.

(d) The Assistant Director for Program Policy,
through the Branch of Inspection and Enforcement, shall be
responsible for:

1. Immediately notifying the appropriate
Field Office Director when a request for informal review has been
received at Headguarters and requesting that the information
required under secticn (3)(b)3.(a)-(d) above must be forwarded to
the cffice of tha Deputy Director within three days;

2. As necessary, congducting briefings or
preparing briefing materials for the Deputy Director; and

3. Preparing the written explanation in
support of the Deputy Director‘s decision.

{e2) The Deputy Director, Operations and Technigal
Services shall be responsible for:

1. Affirming, reversing, or modifying ths
written determination by tha Field Office within 15 days after
receipt of any request for informal review, Information
submitted by the State which was not available to the authorizead
representative at the time of the written determination of the
inappropriate response shall be conzidered and responded to by
the Field Office prior to the Deputy Director’s decision.

2. Ordering a Federal inspection where it is
decided that the regulatory authority has failed to take
appropriate action or show gond fause; and

3. Providing a written explanaticn of the
informal review decision to the regulatory authority, the
permittee, the Field ©Office, and if the ten-day notice or ten-day
letter resulted from a request for a Federal inspection under 30
CFR 842.12, to the persch who made the request.

{4) Citizen Complaints.

(a) Citizen complaints received in writing which
provide reason to believe that a violation exists, but which do
not allege (and provide adequate proof) that an imminent danger
or harm exists and that the regulatory authority has failed to
take appropriate action, shall be immediately transmitted to the
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regulatory autheority by a ten~day letter., The latter shall
explain that unless within ten days the regulatory authority
notifies the Field 0Office in writing that it has taken
appropriate action to cause the alleged violation to be corrected
or shows good cause for not taking such action, a Federal
inspaction will be conducted.

{b} Field Office Directors shall establish
systems to effectively monitor the expiration of the ten-day
peripds for State responses to citizen conplaints, For each
¢itizen complaint, a separate case file ghall be established
which contains chronologically all decuments and correspondence
associated with the case.

{e) If the information in a citizen’s compliant is
not sufficient to form a reason to beliave that a person is in
vielation of the Act, the approved State program, or permit, an
informational letter should be transmitted to the State with the
citizen’s concern and the citizen informed of the transmittal.

f5) dressi P it e » The feollowing
provisions shall be applied to address permit defects except
those determined to have been issued due to fraud or collusion,
or situations where the permit does not specifically address a
practice which is governed by a performance standard. In either
case, the performance standard will control and enforcement
action by the State regulatory authority is required.

(a) Where alleged defects are identified in
permits issued by the regulatory autherity during oversight
inspections or during the course of administrative permit
reviews, the Field Office shall notify the regulatory authority
of the alleged defect by ten-day letter. The letter shall
explain that a Federal inspection will be conducted unless within
ten days, the regulatory authority notifies the Field Office in
writing that it has taken the appropriate action described below
to correct the alleged defect or shows good cause for not taking
such action.

(b} Where the permit or permit application
containg insufficient information to provide the basis for
approval by the regulatory authority (e.g., insufficient
stability analysis, insufficient baszeline hydrologic
information}, reflects State regulatory authority approval of a
design or construction that is inconsistent with the approved
program, or approval of a practice that is inconsistent with the
approved program (e.g., the permit allows the operator to leave a
highwall), appropriate action by the regulatory authority to
correct a permit defect shall, if allowed by the approved
program, at a minimum consist of the following actions:
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1. the permittee has been notified in
writing that an application for a permit revision is reguired
within a reasonable and specified period of time that does not
exceed thirty days unless the regulatory agthority identifies an
exceptional circumstance that would require a longer period of
time to submit the application for revigion;

2, a tlme period haa been established within
which the regulatory authority will approve or disapprove the
application for a permit revision that does not excaed thirty
days unless the regulatory authority identifies an exceptional
circumstance that would require a longer period of time to
approve or disapprove the application for revizion;

3. where needed, interim steps, including
withdrawal or modification of approval toc use an area of the
permit or of a practice allowed by the permit have been imposed
to minimize any potential environmental harm until a permit
revisicn can be approved; and

4, a schedule and pericd of time have been
established that is conesistent with the State program squivalent
of 30 CFR 843.12 for remedial actions required to. bring the
operation into compliance with the approved program and the
permit ag revised.

(c) 1In those instances in which the permit defect
is not corrected within the reascnable time, appropriate interim
steps are not imposed, or remedial actions to bring the operaticn
inte compliance with the revised permit are not completed, the
Field Office would conduct an inspection and, if appropriate,
proceed with enforcement action.

(d) The regulatory authority may requast a
reasonable and specified extensicn of time for its respense to a
permit defect letter where additional time is negessary to make
the written finding required under the State analog to 30 CFR
774.11{c}.

. {8} Where Federal inspection and enforcement is
regquired, but is not sufficient to remedy a programmatic
permitting problem, Field Gffices may initiate proceedings under
30 CFR Parts 732 or 732 as appropriate. Following the
appropriate programmatic changes by the State, the State shall
inform the operator of the changes and reguire that the operation
be brought into compliance with the approved 3tate program,

{6) Federal Minesite Visgits,

{2) Where needed, Field Offices may wvisit
minesites when Field Offices determine the State has supplied
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inadequate information upon which: to determine whether thera is
bhasis to warrant issuance of a ten-day notice or ten-day letter;
To confirm a State response that a violation does not exist or
has been abated during the ten-day notice or ten-day letter
period; or to demonstrate that the regulatory authority has taken
action to ensure that violations cited as a result of a ten-day
notice or letter are properly abated. OSM shall notify the state
of the minesite visit and the information sought.

, (b} Before conducting Federal inspections ordered
ag a result of inappropriate sState ten-day notice responses,
including those ordered by the Deputy Director pursuant to
requests for informal review, where practical, the Field Offices
shall notify the regulatory authority of the fact that an
inspection is scheduled and provide the regqulatory authority the
cpportunity to accompany the Federal inspactor.

{c) If, as a result of the inspection conducted
under paragraph (b} above, it is found that a vielation continues
to exist, the Federal inspector shall issue an enforcement acticn
unless the State inspecter takes appropriate enforcement action
during or before the Federal inspectien.

5. FO HG UTREME .  Hone.

6. E H O R UM - Supersedes Directives INE-35,
Transmittal Number 534, March 23, 1989, and INE-27, Transmittal
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9. CONTACT, Chief, Branch of Inspection and Enforcement,
(202) 208-2550 (Commercial) or 268-2550 (FTS) .

16. KEYWORDS. Ten-day netices; appropriate action; good causa;

arbitrary, capricious, or abuse of discretion; informal review;
pPermit defect; improvidently issued permit; citizen complaints.

11. LIST OF APPENDICES. None.

13






e,

INE-35-1

U- S- DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR) Sublect Number:

hcd
=

| f‘f"\;ﬁ“ﬂ‘vﬁ OFFICE OF SURFACE MINING
2’

‘M |BECLAMATION AND ENFORCEMENT |Tmirul Number

DIRECTIVES SYSTEM [>=JUL 22 1991

Subject: Ten—
Jf.enlmw'ﬂmiceg

Apprwl}:sﬁ[.}é,g,qu 5t _ﬂ;ﬁ}'— Tide: Director
7

Directive INE-35, Transmittal Number 640, dated October 1, 1530,
addressing permit defects is amended to make the procedures for
Ten-Day Letters consistent with those established for Ten~Day
Notices under Section 4.c.{2)}(yg) of the Directive.

Accerdingly, paragraph 4.c.(5)(c) is changed to read:

(c) In those instances in which the permit defect is not
corrected within the reascnable time, appropriate interim stepe
are not imposed, or remedial actions to bring the cperation into
compliance with the revised permit are not completed, the action

Office Director shall inform the State that failure to implement
the actions in the State’s Ten-Day Letter response previously
determined to be appropriate has now caused the response to be

be immediately ordered unless the State regquests informal review
under 30 CFR 842.11(b) (2} {iii)(n).

| CHANGE NOTICE

shall be determined to be inappropriate. At that time, the Field

considered inappropriate and therefore, s Federal inspection will
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! / To Gelete provisions that atlow the,issuance of Ten-Day Letters as an alternative fﬂnnluf |

L/ a Ten-Day Notice, the following changes are made to INE-35, Transmittal No. 640, dated
Cctober 19, 1990,
Parapraph: Change:
2.b. Delete paragraph
2.c Renumber to 2.b.
2.d. Renumber to 2.c.
b Delete paragraph
3.c Renumber to 3.h,
3.d. Renumber to 3.c.
e Renumber to 3.4.
3f. ) Renumber 3.¢.
3B Renumber-to 3.1.
3.h. ) Renumber o 3.2.
_ 4b. : Delete "ten-day letter” in second line
4.5.(3) ) Delete paragraph
4.b.(4) ' Delete paragraph
4.5(5) - Renumber to 4.b.(3)
"4 Delate references to "ten-day letter”
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